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Mark R, Vickery, P.G., Executive Director

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

September 2, 2011

Bridget Bohac, Chief Clerk

Office of the Chief Clerk

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 13087, MC-105

Austin, Texas 78711-3087

Re: TCEQ Docket No. 2011-1388-UCR. Consideration of a request for a Commission
Order approving a contract designating service areas between the City of Bogata
and Red River County WSC pursuant to Texas Water Code Section 13.248.

Dear Ms. Chao:
Transmitted herewith for filing with the Texas Commission on Environmental

Quality (“Commission”) are the following items as backup material for the September
21, 2011 agenda regarding the request described above:

1. Proposed Order, with the Texas Water Code Section 13.248 contract attached to
it;

2, Interoffice Memorandum containing an Executive Summary;

3. Application for a Commission order approving a Texas Water Code Section

13.248 contract filed on June 21, 2011;

4. Interoffice Memorandum containing analysis of the City of Bogata’s financial,
managerial, and technical capability;

5. Map of the area covered by the Agreement; and
6. Map consent forms from the City of Bogata and Red River County WSC.
Respectfully submitted,
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James Aldredge, Staff Attorney
Environmental Law Division

P.O. Box 13087 ¢ Austin, Texas 78711-3087 ¢ 512-239-1000 * www.tceq.state.tx.us
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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

AN ORDER APPROVING A CONTRACT DESIGNATING SERVICE
AREAS BETWEEN THE CITY OF BOGATA AND THE RED RIVER
COUNTY WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION PURSUANT TO TEXAS
WATER CODE SECTION 13.248; TCEQ DOCKET NO. 2011-1388-UCR.

A request for a Commission Order approving a contract designating water service
areas in Red River County between the City of Bogata (City) and Red River
County Water Supply Corporation (WSC), CCN No. 10530, was presented to the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (Commission) for approval
pursuant to Texas Water Code Section 13.248 and Title 30 of the Texas
Administrative Code, Section 291.117.

Effective July 26, 2010, the City and WSC executed an “Agreement” (Contract) to
transfer retail water utility service area regarding their respective water service
areas. The Contract addresses the transfer of the WSC’s authority to provide
water service to approximately 391 acres and provides that the City will be the
sole provider of retail water service in that service area. The Contract is attached
to this Order as Exhibit 1. This Order effects changes in CCN service areas as
designated by the City and the WSC in the Contract,

Contracts between retail public utilities that designate areas to be served and
customers to be served by those retail public utilities, when approved by the
Commission after public notice and hearing, are valid and enforceable and are
incorporated into the appropriate areas of public convenience and necessity.
Texas Water Code Section 13.248.

The Commission held a hearing on the request at the September 21, 2011 agenda
and found that the request had merit.

The City is capable of rendering continuous and adequate water service to every
customer in the area covered by the Contract. The decertification of the WSC’s
authority to provide service in the affected area, which results in the City being
the sole service provider remaining in the area, is necessary for the service,
accommodation, convenience, or safety of the public.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE TEXAS COMMISSION
ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY that:

1, The provisions of the Contract addressing the transfer of a portion of
WSC’s CCN No. 10530, and designating that retail water service shall be provided
by the City of Bogata in that area are hereby approved.



2, CCN No. 10530 in Red River County, held by the Red River County WSC,
is hereby amended in accordance with the Contract.

3. The Executive Director is directed to redraw the maps of the CCN as
provided in the Contract and as set forth on the map attached to this Order as
Exhibit 2, and to amend the Commission’s official water service area map for Red
River County, Texas. The certificate amendment requested in this application are
necessary for the service, accommodation, convenience, and safety of the public.

4. The Chief Clerk of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality shall
forward a copy of this Order to the parties.

5. If any provision, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Order is for any reason

held to be invalid, the invalidity of any portion shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of the Order.

Issue Date:

TEXAS COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

For the Commission



AGREEMENT

This agreement is between. Red River County Water Supply Corporation (RRCWSC) and
the City of Bogata, Texas,

RRCWSC is currently the holder of CCN #10350. This Cerﬁiﬂcéte of Convenience and
Necassity provides that RRCWSC has the right to supply water to various parts of Red River
County, Texas and, speoiﬁéally, to that area outside the nunicipal jurisdiction of the City of Bogata,
Texas, Tt is acknowledged that Ross Aore Fayms intends to construct an egg farm facility an
property that is currently owned by Steve Hagémw, ¢t 8l, The property intended for the Rose Acre
Farins facility lies just outside of the city limits of Bogata, Texas and within the CCN#10350 held
by RRCWSC.

The City of Bogata, Texas has agreed to provide water service to Roge Acre Farms at the
location deseribed above provided that RRCWSC will agres to a modification of CCN #10330,

RRCWSC does hereby agree to allow the City of Bogata, Texas o provide water servics to
Roge Acve Farmg at the location described above. RRCWSC does hereby apiee to request a
modification of CCN #10350 under Texas Water Code §13.248 and in such a manner as to allow
the City of Bogata, Texas to provide water service to Rose Acre Farms at the location described
above, RRCWSC along with the City of Bogata agrees to take any and all actioné that are necessary
to acconphistt the intent of this agreement which is to allow the City of Bogata, Texas to provide
water service to Rose Acre Farrs at the location desctibed gbove,

Any application the Texas Commission on Envirommental Quality (TCEQ) requires under

the Texas Water Code and the TCEQ"s rules for approval of the modification in RRCWSC’s CCN

_shall be made 1o later than 30 days after Rose Acre Farms provides the City and RRCWSC the

1
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surveyed legal desctiption of the Rose Acre Farmg property, unless otherwise agreed 10 in writing
by the City of Bogata and RRCWSC, Ali additional filings required by the TCEQ will be made in
1 ;cimely manner as requested by the TCHEQ.

It is further agreed that the CCN modification shall be limited to the specific acreage on
which the Rose Acte Farms is located and that an adequate Jegal description shall be attached to the
request to maodify the CCN that limits the modificetion fo the speeific acreage on which Rose Acre
Farma is located, as well as any other information the TCEQ may request. The land along the route
of the pipeline which is not o the Rose Acre Farms property and which 1s in RRCWSC’s CCN, if
any, shall not be included in the CON modification, nor will RRCWSC vede that area to the City of
Bogata, Texas. However, this shall not prevent the City of Bogata from providing Rose Acre Farms
water service using the proposed water line passiog through this area. Additionally, to the extent
Rose Acre Farms purchases, within 20 years of the date of this agreement, additional property
adjacent to of in close proximity to the original tract for the purposes of expending its egs farm
operations, and construction for such expansion beging on or before the 23 ~year anuiversary date of
this agreement, RRCWSC will expand its consent to allow the City of Bogata to serve Rose Acte
Farms on those properties as-well subject to the same terms of this agreement, including making ;zuzuy
filings with the TCEQ required under the Texas Water Code and the TCRQ rules,

The City of Bogats, Texas will prepare the necessary TCEQ CCN modification documents
for RRCWSC’s approval. These ﬁocuments will be exccuted by the appropiiate officizls of

RRCWSC and forwarded to TCEQ for ity approvel. The City of Bogata will also prepare any
notices to surrounding water systems o the extent required under the Texas Water Code priortothe

change in the CCN.
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The pipeline serving the farmn shall not be used for any other purpose except to provide water
service 1o Rose Acre Farms® property and no other connections exeept those required for flushing
the line will be permitted on the pipeline.

The City of Bogata agrees that RRCWSC is voluntatily ceding a portion of its CCN in the
interest of economic development and at the request of the City of Bogata and Rose Acre Fanms,
Tn the event Rose Acre Farms, of its successor, censes to operate as a commercial epg farm facility
on the site, then the City of Bogata or its successor, on request fom RRCWSC or its sucoessor
agrees 1o take sieps to restoxe the farm property to RRCWSC’s CCN area (or the sucoessor vehicle
to CCN'5). However, the ownership of the line itself will not revert to RRCWSC under this
agrecrnent,

In fature dealings with TCEQ, orits sucoebsor, an application to expand its area of operations
or CCN, the Qity of Bogata agrees to neither argue nor, represent that the City of Bogata {3 already
serving the site or has a waterdine in the atea and thus should be permitted to serve arsas adjacent

thereto, Provided, howéver, that nothing in this Agreement shall otherwise affect the City of

Bogata’s rights nader Texas Watet Code §13.255 or RROWSC™s rights under 7 U.8.C. §1926(b),

The parties acknowledge that this agreement may be subject to the approval of TCEQ and
the U.8. Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Famm Service Agency (“Ruval
Development™), which has a lien on all property of RRCWSC und the power to consent or withhold
congentto the proposed transfer of a portion of RRCWSC's certificated aven of service, RRCWSC
contemplates, based on ifs dlscussions with Rural Development, that Rurel Development will
approve & consensual release of a specific portion of RROWSCs CCN to the City of Bogata for the

use of Rose Acye Parms, RRCWSC agrees to complete and deliver to Rural Development it form
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RD-465-1 “Application for Partial Release, Subornation, or Consent” and forward same to Rural
Development. Should Rural Development deny ﬂle; application, should TCEQ refise to acoept the
CCN changes, and should there be no othet way to legally accomplish the transfer contemplated
herein, RRCWSC shall be wader no further obligation under this agreement, However, RROWSE
will ecoperate in all respects to legally effectuate the intent of this agreement and to insure that water
can be supplied by the City of Bogatato Rose Acre Farms through a line built by the Cily and/or
Rose Acre Farms,

This agreement prohibits Rose Acre Farms from. reselling (or submetering) watexr without
RRCWSC’s consent, However, it is understood that for bio-security reasons there will be separate
lines and/or meters on the property where the facility is located to comply with. governmental
regulations applicable to commercial egg firmns, These additional lines and/or meters will be for
industrial use only except that Rose Acte Farms mey build up to five single family dwellings to
house supervisory and/or security personnsl,

It is acknowledged by both parties that more formal documents may need to be execnted so
as o allow the modiffcation of the CCN as deseribed above, Further, it may be necessary that a
survey be performed. RRCWSC and the City of Bogata, Texas agree to take all steps necessary fo
secure the modificationas described above, The costs incutred in securing such amodification shall
be the responsibility of the City of Bogata and/or Rose Acre Farms,

Thiy agresment is binding upon the parties, thelr successors, and assigus,

The parties represent that by signing below that they have the requisite suthority to enter futo

this agreement.
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AGREED and signed in duplicate originals
on the dafes shown;

g 9 penliN. gé“ﬁ“
} Representative of RRCWSC

| @W W -
Mayor, Vinoeut}!um, City of Bogata, Texas
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CITY OF BOGATA
P.0. BOX 400
BOGATA, TEXAS 75417
(903) 6325315
(903) 6324631 -fax

July 27,2010

Received by Red River County WSC, from the City of Bogata, an original copy
of the agreement between them for amending Red River County WSC CCN
allowing the City of Bogata to sell water to Rose Acre Farms,
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Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Texas Commission on DATE: September 2, 2011
Environmental Quality

THRU: Melissa Chao, Acting Chief Clerk

FROM: James Aldredge, Environmental Law Division

SUBJECT: TCEQ Docket No. 2011-1388-UCR. Consideration of a request for a
Commission order approving a contract designating service areas between

the City of Bogata and the Red River County Water Supply Corporation
(WSC)

DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION

Applicant: City of Bogata and Red River County WSC

Regulated Activity: Retail water utility service

Type of Application: Request for a Commission order approving a contract
Commission Action: Hearing regarding approval of the contract

Authority: Texas Water Code § 13.248 and 30 Texas Administrative

Code § 291,117

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

The City of Bogata (City) and Red River County WSC (WSC), water Certificate of
Convenience and Necessity (CCN) No. 10530, provide retail water service in Red River
County, Texas. On July 26, 2010, Red River County WSC and the City entered into an
agreement regarding their respective water service areas pursuant to section 13.248 of
the Texas Water Code. Under the agreement, the WSC will transfer approximately 391
acres of CCN No. 10530 to the City. According to the agreement, the area to be
transferred is owned by Steve Hageman who is not a customer of the WSC. Mr.
Hageman consents to the CCN change.

The parties have reviewed the CCN map to be issued with the Commission’s order and
have approved it.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

The Texas Water Code prohibits a utility, a utility operated by an affected county, or a
water supply corporation from rendering retail water or sewer utility service directly or



indirectly to the public without first obtaining a CCN.* Conversely, a municipality is not
required to obtain a CCN to provide retail water service.2

The Texas Water Code and TCEQ rules allow retail public utilities to enter into service
area agreements and have the Commission affirm the agreements by amending the
entities’ respective CCNs.3 The request to approve a 13.248 agreement is not subject to
the notice provisions of title 30, section 291.106 of the Texas Administrative Code,
which apply to applications for new and amended CCNs. The Commission may approve
the service area agreement pursuant to section 13.248 of the Texas Water Code with
appropriate notice provided under the Open Meetings Act. The Executive Director has
mailed notice of the hearing to the City and the WSC.

BASIS FOR STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The following items were considered in developing the staff’s recommendation:

1. Request for a Commission Order approving the 13.248 agreement filed by the
City of Bogata on June 21, 2011 (Application No. 37065-C);

2, Agreement between Red River County WSC, the City, executed on July 26, 2010;

3. Map of the service area subject to the 13.248 agreement submitted by the City of
Bogata; and

4. Financial, managerial, and technical analysis of the City to operate in the affected
area.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff has confirmed that both the City of Bogata and Red River County WSC are retail
public utilities properly authorized to provide retail water service. The area is being
transferred because the prospective operator of an agricultural business on the land to
be transferred has requested service from the City. Water Supply Division staff is
satisfied that the City possesses the adequate financial, managerial, and technical
capability to provide continuous and adequate service to the area being transferred.
Therefore, based on the facts stated in the application and the supporting
documentation submitted by the City, staff supports the request for a Commission
Order approving a contract designating service areas between the City and Red River
County WSC.

t'Tex, Water Code Ann, § 13.242(a).

2 A municipality is a “retail public utility” under section 13.002(19) of the Texas Water Code but is not a
“utility” under section 13.002(23). Therefore, the section 13.242(a) requirement that a “utility” must
obtain a CCN before providing retail water utility service does not apply to a municipality.

3 Tex, Water Code Ann. § 13.248; 30 Tex. Admin, Code § 291.117, Section 13.248 states, “Contracts
between retail public utilities designating areas to be served and customers to be served by those retail
public utilities, when approved by the commission after public notice and hearing, are valid and
enforceable and are incorporated into the appropriate areas of public convenience and necessity.”



STAFF CONTACTS

James Aldredge, Environmental Law Division (239-2496)
Elizabeth Flores, Water Supply Division (239-6846)
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E"KERRERA E@YIJEI’LLC

June 21, 2011

Ms, Lisa Fuentes

Utilities Financial Review

Utilities and Districts Section, MC 153
Water Supply Division

TCEQ

Building F

12100 Park 35 Circle

Austin, TX 78753

RE:  Application To Transfer A Potion of Certificated Area Served By The Red
River WSC To The City of Bogata

Dear Ms. Fuentes:

Pursuant to TWC 13.248 and 30 TAC 291.117(a-b), this letter is to request
your review and approval of a contract that would transfer an existing Certificate
of Convenience and Necessity (“CCN”) area.

The contract proposes to transfer a certain area of the CCN belonging to
Red River Water Supply Corp. to the City of Bogata, Texas, This transfer would
accommodate the business requirements of Rose Acre Farms, an agricultural
business that plang to construct a commercial egg farm facility in the area if they
are able fo obtain water from the City of Bogata. Granting this request would
allow Rose Acre Farms to proceed with its plans to build the facility and would
result in employment opportunities and economic benefits affecting Red River
County.

The affected arca is limited to where Rose Acre Farms plans to build its
facility, There are currently no customers receiving service from Red River
Water Supply Corp. in the affected area. Red River Water Supply Corp. does not
have any assets or facilities that would need to be transferred in the affected area.

In support of this application, please find enclosed the following:

e Attachment A: A list of public water systems affected by the
transfer;
¢ Attachment B: A list of affected landoy

*  Attachment C: A copy of the contract s1gne(i‘4§Ltwlgnm HiKer
WSC and the City of Bogata, A ATddneg N

ERN
GaAgomy

“Board Certified, Administrative Law, Texas Board of Legal Specialization,




Attachment D: A copy of the contract signed between the City of Bogata
and Rose Acre Farms,

Attachment B: Maps that identify the area to be transferred by acreage
and tract numbers and names;

Attachment F: Information sufficient to demonstrate the City of Bogata’s
financial, managerial, and technical ability to provide service in the atea to
be transfetrred;

Attachment G: Letters of support from Rose Acre Farms and the only
affected landowner; and

A filing fee of $100.

If you have any questions or concerns, ot require aty additional information,
please do not hesitate to contact me.

Singerely,
Al@i\j; &am

SN






ATTACHMENT A

LIST OF PUBLIC WATER
SYSTEMS AFFECTED BY
THE TRANSFER



List of Affected Water Systems:

* Red River Water Supply Cotp.
e City of Bogata



ATTACHMENT B

LIST OF AFFECTED
LANDOWNERS



List of Affected Customers:

* No current customers are receiving service within the CCN area to be transferred,



ATTACHMENT C

COPY OF THE
CONTRACT SIGNED
BETWEEN RED RIVER
WSC AND THE CITY OF
BOGATA



AGREEMENT

This agreement ig betweon Red River County Water Supply Corpotation (RRCWSC) and
the City of Bogata, Texas.

RRCWSC is currently the holder of CON #10350, This Cerﬁﬁcéte of Convenience and
Necessity provides that RRCWSC has the right to supply water to various parts of Red River
County, Texas and, speciﬁéal ly, to that acea outside the naunicipal jurisdietion of the City of Bogata,
Texas. It 13 acknowledged that Rose Aore Farms intends o construct an egg farm facility on
property that is currently owned by Steve I—Iagémm, ¢t al. The property intended for the Rose Acre
Fevins facility lies just outsi;le of the city Hmits of Bogata, Texas and within the CCN #10350 held
by RRCWSC.

The City of Bogata, Fexas has agreed to provide water service to Rose Aore Farms at the
location deseribed above provided that RRCWSC will agree to a modification of CCN #10350,

RRCWEC does hereby agres to allow the City of Bogats, Texas o provide water service to
Roge Acre Farmg at the location described above, RRCWSC does hereby agree to request a
modification of CCN #10350 under Texas Water Code §13.248 and in such a marmer as to allow
the City of Bogats, Texas to provide water service to Rose Acre Farms at the location desaribed
above, RRCWSC along with the City of Bogata agrees to take any and all acﬁon§ that are necessary
to accomplish the intent of this agreement which is to allow the City of Bogata, Texas to provide
water service to Rose Acre Farus at the location described above,

Any application the Texas Commission on Bnvironmental Quality (TCEQ) requires under

the Texas Water Code and the TCEQ's rules forapproval of the modification in RRCWSC?s CCN

_shall be made 5o later than 30 days after Rose Aore Farms provides the City and RRCWSC the

1
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surveyed legal description of the Rose Acre Farmg property, unless otherwise agreed 10 in writing
by the City of Bogata and RRCWSC. All additional filings required by the TCEQ will be made in
a :timcr.ly marmer as requested by the TCEQ.

[tis forther agreed that the CCN modification shall be limited o the specific acreage on
which the Rose Acte Farms is located and that an adequate Jegal description shall be attached to the
request o medify the CON that limits the modification to the specific acreage on which Rose Acre
Farms is located, as well as any other information the TCEQ may request. The land along theroute
of the pipeline which is not on the Rose Acre Farms property and which is in RRCWSC?s CCN, if
any, shall not be incheded in the CCN modification, nor will RRCWSC cede that area to the City of
Bogata, Texas. However, this shall not prevent the City of Bogatafiom providing Rose Aore Farms
water sarvice using the proposed water line passing throvgh this avea. Additionally, to the extent
Rose Acre Farms purchases, within 20 years of the date of this agreement, additional property
adjacent fo or in close proximity to the original tract for the purposes of expanding its egg fam
operations, and construction for such expansion beging on or before the 23-year anuiversary date of
this agreement, RRCWSC will expand jts consent to allow the City of Bogata to serve Rose Acte
Farms on thoseproperties aswell subject to the same terms of this agreement, inclading making 'any
filings with the TCEQ required under the Texas Water Code and the TCEQ niles.

The City of Bogata, Texas will prepare the necessary TCEQ CCN modification doctments
for RRCWSC's approval. These ﬁoomnents will be executed by the appropriate officials of
RRCWSC and forwarded to TCEQ for its approval. The City of Bogata will also prepare any
notioes to surcounding water systerns fo the extent required under the Texas Water Code priorto the

change in the CCN.
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The pipeline serving the farm shall not be used for any other purﬁose gxcept to provide water
service 1o Rose Aore Farms® property and no other connections exeept those required for flushing
the line will be permitted on the pipeline.

The City of Bogata agrees that RRCWSC is voluntatily ceding a portion of its CCN in the
interest of economic development and at the request of the City of Bogata and Rose Acre Fanns.
Tn the event Rose Acre Farms, ot its successor, ceases 1o operate as a commercial egg farm facility
on the site, then the City of Bogata ox ity successox, on request fom RRCWSC or Its successor
agrees 1o take sieps to restore the favm property to RRCWSC’s CCN area (or the sucoessor vehicle
to CCN's). However, the ownership of the line itself will not revert to RRCWSC under this
agreement.

In future dealings with TCEQ, or its successor, an application to expand its area of operations
or CCN, the City of Bogata agrees to neither argue nor represent that the City of Bogata {3 already
serving the site orhas a waterfine in the area and thus should be permitted to setve areas adjacent

thereto, Provided, howéver, that nothing in this Agreement shall otherwise affect the City of

Bogata’s rights under Texas Water Code §13.255 or RROWSC’s rights under 7 U.8.C. §1926(b).

The parties acknowledge that this agreement may be subject to the approval of TCEQ and
the U.8. Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Famm Service Agency (“Rural
Development™), which has a lien on all property of RRCWSC und the power to consent or withhold
congent to the proposed transfer of a portion of RRCWSC's certificated aven of service, RRCWSC
contemplates, based on {fs discussions with Rural Development, that Rurel Development will
approve & consensual refease of a spectfic portion of RRCWSEC's CON to ‘the City of Bogata for the

use of Rose Acre Farms, RRCWSC agrees 1o complete and deliver to Rural Development it formn
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RD-465-1 “Application for Partial Release, Subornation, or Consent” and forward same to Rural
Development. Should Rural Development deny thc;, application, should TCEQ refise to accept the
CCN changes, and should thers be no other way to legally accomplish the transfer conternplated
herein, RRCWSC shall be undet no further obligation under this agreement. However, RRCWSC
will cooperate in all respectsto logally effectuate the intent of this agreement and to insure that water
can be supplied by the City of Bogatato Rose Acre Faros through a line built by the Clty and/or
Rose Acre Faums,

Thig agreement prohibits Rose Acre Farms from reselling (or submetering) watex without
RRCWSC’s consent, However, it is understood that for blo-security reasons there will be separate
Jines and/or meters on the property where the facility is located to vomply with governmental
regulations applicable to commercial egg farmns, These additional lines and/or meters will be for
industrial use only except that Rose Acre Parms may build up to five single family dwellings to
house supervisory and/or security personnel,

Tt is acknowledged by both parties that more formal documents may need to be exeented so
as to allow the modification of the CCN as deseribed above, Further, it may be necessary that a
survey be performed. RRCWSC and the Clty of Bogata, Texas agree to take all steps necessary fo
secure the modification as described above, The costs incuured in securing such amodification shall
be the responsibility of the City of Bogata and/or Rose Acre Farms,

Thiy agrecxnont is binding wpon the parties, thelr successors, and assigns,

The parties represent that by signing below that they have the requisite awtherity to enter futo

thiz agrecment.
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AGREED and signed in duplicate originals
on the dates shown;

Representative of RRCWSC

YT s/

Mayor, Vinoent}[um, City of Bogata, Texas

od [RaleTPRrd slelialgTa]
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CITY OF BOGATA
P.0. BOX, 400
BOGATA, TEXAS 75417
(903) 632-5315
(903) 632-4631-Fax

July 27,2010

Received by Red River County WSC, from the City of Bogata, an origimal copy
of the agreement betweon them for amending Red. River County WSC CCN
allowing the City of Bogata to sell water to Rose Acre Farms.
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ATTACHMENT D

COPY OF THE
CONTRACT SIGNED
BETWEEN THE CITY OF
BOGATA AND ROSE
ACRE FARMS



Oct 06 10 12:06p Court 903-632-4631 P2

AGREEMENT

This agreement is between Rose Acrs Farms (Rose Acre) and the City of Bogata, Texas (the
City). In congideration of Roge Acre’s commitment to build s commercial egg farm in Red River
Cotnty, Texas, which will result in job erettion within the County, the City agtees to provide a daily
supply of potsble water lo Rose Acre in accordanece with the terms and conditions set out below,
A. Treated Water Supply

The City will make available to Rose Acre a supply of potable water meeting apploable
purity standards in the State of Texas 1o bo used st Rose Acwe's proposed cormeroclal egg farm
located outside of the city limits of the City. The City agress to provide the daily potable water
needs of Rose Aore’s conumercial egg farm forﬁ 20-year texm, Ak the end of the 20 year tenin, Rose
Acre will continue to purchase water end the City will continue to supply water under the terms
provided herein vnless and vatil bofh parties jointly agree to terminate this agreement, Any
agresment to ferminate shall be in wrlthng and exeouted by Rose Acre and the City.
B.  Rate

The City agrees to provide Rose Acre potable watet at its cormetcial egg farm wnder the
fallowing monthly rate provisions:

$21.50 for the first 2000 gallons wsed; or

If yse is less than 50,000 gallons per month, then $6.00 per thousand, for each thongand
gallons in excess of 2000 gallons; or .

Huse is 50,000 gallons or mare per month, then $0.50 per thousand for each thousand vsed
in excess of 2000 gallons.

This 20-year rate petiod will commence on the date Rose Acte begins taking potable water
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from the City at ity egg farm, 1t is agooed that the rate will not be adjusted for production costs
increase, if any, until the end of the year 2011, Thereafier, 1f “production costs” as that texm is
defined herein rises, then the tate Rose Acre Farms 15 paying for usage greater than 50,000 gallons
ghall rigse accordingly for the following years:
“Produetion cogis” are made up of the following:
(a) electricity for the wells and punaps;
() costs of chlorine or gther chemioals for water treatment; and
{ ©) repairs to the wells and pumps,
It is agreed between the parties that the current production costs for water for the City of
Bopata is $0.37 per thevsand gallons.
Production costs per thousand gallons of water are calouluted in the following manner:
L First Step
(4) Caloulute the average daily rate of water usage in terras of 1,000 gallons, To do so the
totel number of pallons supplied annually by the City of Bogata Is divided by 365 to arrive at a
“daily rate of water usage”. (Total gallons in year + 365 = daily rate of water usnge).
(b) Drivide the “daily rate of water wsage? by 1,000,
{ ©) The result is the “daily rate of water nsage” In 1,000 gallon terms,
2. Second Step
() Detarming the “daily average cost”, This is determined by adding the followlng:
L. Total eleotricity costs of the water wells and. puxps for the year;
2. Total costs of chlorine ox other chemicals for water teatmert for the year,

3. Total repairs and maintonance to water wells und pumps for the year.

2
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(b) The fotal of (a) is divided by 365 to atrive at “average daily cost”.
3. Third Step

“prodmetion costs” Is determined dividing daily rate of water usage. (1,000 gallons) by
the “average daily cost”, The result 1s the “production custs”. The formula s us Follows:

Average daily rate + average daily = production costs.
waler nsage (1,000 gallons) costs

At the end of the year 2011, the production costs for the preceding yoar (2011) will be

determingd. The rate to be paid by Rove Acre Farms fox usage of 50,000 gallons or more per duy
will rise ir accardance with the incease in production costs, if any. For exampia, if at the end of
year 2011 it is valculated that the production costs has fncreased frora $0.37 fo $0.39 per 1,000
gatlony, then the rate paid by Roés Acre Fm'ms; beginnbeg Jauary §, 2012 and therenfter would
likewise increass by $0.02, The pesalting rate in this e;xamplé would be $0.52 pet 1,000 gallons,
The annvel adjustment for products costs inoreage, if any, shall continve in » like manner for the
remaining yoars of this agresment.  Any adjustment for production costs shall be applied for the
following years.
¢t Cost of Capital Dprovenients

The City, t its expense, will provide z pipeline from its eurtent mumcipal water systen fo
Rose Acte’s proposed office within the Clty’s corporate lits and will plave ameter af that location,
This pipeline and meter will meet the engineered specifications determined necessary to provide a
sufficient water supply to Rose Aore’s commercial egg farm,

Rose Acre will pay all costs assoclated with constructing & pipeline from the meter location

atits office within the City’ s cotporate ltits 1o 118 commercial egg farin, inctuding storage tanks and
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pressurization facilities.

This agreement is contingent on, the City being uble to obtain the CCN from the Red River
Coutty Water Supply Corporation,

This agreement is binding upon the parties, theit successors, and assigns.

'The parties represent that by signing below that they have therequisite suthority to enter intg
this agresment.  Specifically, this agreement has been approved by the City Council of the City of

Boygata, Texas.

o
M ‘:’ 3
S o 1P 10
Chips Bvetfiart, Director of Envitonmeantal Affairs
Rose Acpe Farms

. a’{eﬁm/ Date: 5?/2//67

Mayor, Vincent ijﬁi, City of Bogata, Texas
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I, Hayden Foster, Registered Professional Land Surveyor, No. 5699 do hexeby cextify that the plat and accompanying field notes represents an
on the ground survey made under my direct supervislon, Research of recorded documents was made only fot the pmpose of determining the
boundary of this property aud the adjoining parcels. Record documents other than those shown on this survey may exist and encumber this
property. There doesn't appear to be any encroachments other than those shown hereon, Red River County did not participate in the Federal
Bmetgency Matiagement Agency's (FEMA) National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) for this area, Thers is no 100-year flood zone
designation. Reference Bearing = the center of County Road #1200 and depicted on this plat as South 89°39'31" West, Controlling
Monuments are at the terminus of the Reference Bearing, Scheduls B was not available at the time of this survey,

Foster Land Surveying - 17325 BM 197 - Arthur City, TX 75411- office 903.739.9166 - fx, 903.783.9159 - foster-land-surveying.com




Foster Land Surveying 17325 FM 197 Arthur City, TX 75411
(903) 739-9166 fx (903) 783-9159

Field Notes — 391.06 Acres

Situated about 12.9 miles South 54° West from the City of Clarksville, in the County of Red
River, State of Texas, a part of the Isaac Wilson Survey #910 and being all of a called 50 acre Tract I,
conveyed to Steve J. Hageman and wife, Sandra L. Hageman by deed recorded in Vol. 607, Page 356 of
the Official Public Records of said County and State and being all of a called 50 acre Tract XXX VI, all of
a called 100.7912 acre Tract XL, part of a called 75.15 acre Tract XL VI, all of a called 48 acre Tract
LXII and all of a called 75 acre Tract LXII, conveyed to Steve J. Hageman and wife, Sandra L.
Hageman, and Sara L. Hageman, Shane S, Hageman, Stephany S, Hageman by deed recorded in Vol, 594,
Page 582 of said Official Public Records.

Beginning at a 3/8" capped iron pin (HF 5699) set at the Noxtheast corner of the 100.7912 acre
tract and being in the center of the intersection of County Road #1200 and County Road #1202, said point
being the Northwest corner of a called 300 acte tract conveyed to E.J. Brown by deed recorded in Vol. M,
Page 518 of the Deed Records of said County and State,

Thence South 89°39731” West along the center of County Road #1200 and along the North
boundary line of the 100.7912 acre tract and the 48 acre tract a distance of 423393’ to a 3/8" capped iron
pin (HF 5699) set at the Northwest corner of the 48 acre tract and being the Northeast corner of a called
115 acte tract conveyed to Ben Warren by deed recorded in Vol. 201, Page 621 of said Deed Records;

Thence South 0°30°51” Hast along a field road a distance of 4000.06 to a 3/8" capped iron pin
(HF 5699) set in the center of said road and being in the West boundary line of the 75.15 acre tract;

Thence Notth 89°34°38” Bast passing a 3/8" capped iron pin (HF 5699) set at a-distance of
2147417 and continuing along County Road #1204 and passing a /4" rebar set at a distance of 3388.04°
at the Northeast corner of a proposed utility easement and continuing on for a total distance of 4289.71" to
a 3/8" capped iron pin (HF 5699) set in the intersection of County Road #1204 and County Road #1202,
said point being the Southeast cornet of the 50 acre Tract I and being in the North boundary line of a
called 12.00 acre Tract XLVI conveyed to said Steve J. Hageman et ux, said point also being the
Southwest corner of a called 100 acre tract conveyed to John W. Walker and Janie W, Barnhatdt by deed
recorded in Vol. 637, Page 787 of said Official Public Records;

Thence North 1°18°53” West along said County Road #1202 a distance of 3994.52’ to the point
of beginning and containing 391.06 actes of land. '

1, Hayden Foster, Registered Professional Land Surveyor, No. 5699 do hereby certify that the plat and
accompanying field notes represents an on the ground survey made under niy direct supervision.
Research of recorded documents was made only for the purpose of determining the boundary of this
propetty and the adjoining parcels, Record documents other than those shown on this survey may exist
and encumber this property. There doesn't appear to be any encroachments other than those shown
hereon. Red River County did not participate in the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA)
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) for this area. There is no 100-year flood zone designation.
Reference Bearing = the center of County Road #1200 and depicted on this plat as South 89°39'31" West.
Controlling Monuments are at the terminus of the Reference Bearing, Schedule B was not available at the
time of this survey. File #: 100801

{ [ wé.-""é,T )
Hayden Foster NW’JJN ~f’ta/f’n date___09/10 /10 w’é};,,@hﬁg’* X
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CITY OF BOGATA
128 N. MAIN STREET
P.0. BOX 400
BOGATA, TEXAS 75417
903-632-5315
903-632-4631 (fax)

water/sewer tates for the City of Bogata as of 10-1-2010

WATIER SEWER
base rate first 2,000 gallons $21.50 $11.00
per thousand over 2,000 gallons $6.00 $1.25
commercial rates using over

50,000 gallons/month — base
rate for first 2,000 gallons $21.50

per thousand over 2,000 gallons $0.50
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Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

Bob 4 Axnold, C.P.A,

MEMBER
Launy G, Walker, C.P.A,
Kris Avnold, C.P.A, ’ American Institute Of
Andrew T, Axnold, C.P, A, Certified Public Accountants
Melissa J, Godfrey, C.P.A,
Toxas State Society Of

Certifled Public Accountants
November 15, 2010

City of Bogata
Bogata, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, if
applicable, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the City of Bogata for the
yoar ended September 30, 2010, and have igsued our report thereon dated November 15, 2010,
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Qur Responsibility under U,S, Generally Acoepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement lefter dated November 17, 2009, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements are faitly presented, in
all material respects, in conformity with U:S. gonerally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your résponsibilities.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in onr
andit planning letter given to you and dated November 11, 2010,

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate acoounting policies, In accordance with
the terms of our engagement lottor, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting
policies and their application, The significant accounting policies used by the City of Bogata are described
in Note 1 to the financlal statements, No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during 2010, We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental
vnit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There -are no

significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than
when the transaction occurred,

Accounting estimates are an integral par( of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
fotore events, Certain acoounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and becanse of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly

from those expected, The most sensitive estimatos affecting the financial statements were the allowance for
uneollectible taxes and the depreciable lives of fixed assets,

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible taxes is based on historical collection rates,
Management’s estimates of the depreciable lives of assets is based upon a range of lives generally used by
governmental entities, We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates
in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial staterments taken as a whole,

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management In petforming and completing our
audit. :

915 N, Jefferson Streot « PO Box 1217 « Mt Pleasant, Texas 75456-1217 » (903) 572-6606 ¢ Yax (903) 572-3751
: Emails firm@awacpa.com



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to acoumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has cotrected all such misstatements, In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a
result of audit procedures and coxreoted by management were material, either individvally or in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole,

Disagreemenis with Management

For putposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management o8 a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose duting the course of our audit,

Management Representations

We have requested certain tepresentations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 15, 2010.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may deocide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting . ..

matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion’ on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting ptinciple to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the.
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, thete wete no such consultations with other accountants, '

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors, However,
these discussions oceutrred in the notmal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not
a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Council of the City of Bogata and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

Very truly yous,

sold, Walker, #buold & (Po., P. L.

Arnold, Walker, Arnold & Co., P.C.
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UNQUALIFIED OPINION ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOMPANIED BY REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Indenendent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor, and City Counefl
City of Bogatn, Texas

We have audited the accompanying finanolal statements of the government activities, the business type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clty of Bogata, Texas as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the tablo of contents, These
financial statements are the. responsibility of the City's administrators. Our responsibility is to express ah opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametioa and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government duditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller. , .
General of the United States. Those standards requive that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable
agsurance about whether the financial statemonts are freo of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amonnts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overnll financial statement presentation, We believe tliat our audit provides a reasonable basis for onr opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to.above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the government activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate romaining fand information
of City of Bogata, Texasg, as of September 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15, 2010 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, The purpose of that veport is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financlal reporting or compliance, The repott is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in-consideting
the results of our audit,

Accounting prineiples generally accopted in the United States of Ametica require that the management’s discussion on
pages 2 and 9 be presented to supplement the basie financial gtatements. Such Information, although not-a patt of the
basic financial statements, g required by the Governmental Accountibg Standards Board, who considers 1t to be an
essential part of financis! reporting for placing the bagio financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historieal context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the requited supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally acoepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the Informatlon for consistency with
munagement’s responses Yo our inquiries, the basle financlal statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
sudit of the basio financial statements, We do not expross an opinion ot provide any agsurance on the information

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
B8SUIANGS, '

Respectfully submitted,

sueld, Wallern, 1Pmuncld & (o, P. L,

Arnold, Walker, Arnold & Co,, P.C.

November 15, 2010

915 N, Jefferson Street » PO Box 1217 « M. Ploasant, Texay 75486-1217 » (903)'572-6606 ¢ Fax (903) 5723751
Email: frm@awacpa.com



City of Bogata, Texas
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asg management of the City of Bogata, Texas, we offer readers of the City’s financial statetnents this nartative overview and analysis of the financial
activities and performance for the year ended September 30, 2010. The information presented here should be read in conjunction with the
independent auditor's report and the City’s financial statements, '

PINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City's total combined net assets were $2,9 milllon at September 30, 2010 which inoreasad from the prior year by $165 thousand, During the year,
the Clty's revenues were $1.0 million,

The total cost of all the City’s activities was approximately $849.
The general fund balancoe is $114 thousand at September 30, 2010,

Approximately 93% of the taxes levied for 2009-10 wers collected by September 30, 2010,

T
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City of Bogata, Texas
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three patts-—-management's discussion and onalysis (\his seotion), the basic financial statements, end required
supplementary information, The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements thet provide information about the City's activities as a whole and present a
longer-term view of the City's property and debt obligations. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the
financial reports of a business enterprise.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that foeug on individual parts of the government, reporting the City's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements,

v The governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in the short term as well ag whet remains for
future spending,

o Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financlal information about the activities the government operates like businesses,
such as the water and sewer operations, :

o Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financlal relationships in which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the
benefit of others, to whom the resourcos In question belong, The City has no fiduciary funds.

Figure A-1, Required Components of the City's Annual Finanoial Report

.

Management's Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary
and Statements Information
Analysis
Government-Wide Fund Notes
Financial Rinancial to the
Statements Statements Financial
Statements
Summary ¢== Detail

The financial statements also inolude nofes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data, The
statements are followed by a scotion of reguired supplementary informeation that fonther explaing and supports fhe information in the financial
statements. Figure A1 shows how the requited parts of this antel roport are arranged and related to one another.
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City of Bogata, Texas
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City government they cover and the types of
information they contain. The remainder of thig overview section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of

each of the statements.

Tigare A-2. Major Foatures of the Cily's Governmeni-wide Fund Fihancial Sttements
Type of Statements Government-wide Govermtnental Funds Proprietary Funds Tiduolaty Funds
Entlre City's government The activitios of the Clty Actlvilies the City: Instances in which the
Seope (except fiduelary funds) that ate not proprietary. or operales slmilar to private City Is the trustee or
and the City's fiduclary businesses; self Insurance agent for somoone olse's
cornponent unifs resources
Statement of net assets Balance shoet Staterment of net assets Statement of fiduoiary
Required financlal net qsgels
statements [Statement of activities Statement of revenues, Statetnent of ravenues, Staterment of changes
Bxpenditures & changes exponses and changes in In fiduciary net assets
in fund balances fund net asseis
Statentent of cash flows
Accounting basis Acerual accounting and Modified acorual Acorual accounting and Acerual accounting and
and measurement economic resources focus accounting and curtent eoonomle resonrces focus ccoromic resoutces focus
foens financial resourves fosus
All agsetz and linbilities, Only assets expeoted to All assets and labllitios, All assofs and liabilities,
Iype of both financial and capital, bo used up and linbilities {ooth fluancial and capital, both short-term and long-
usset/Habiltly short-term ad long-term that come due durlng the and short«term and fenim; the Agenoy's funds do
Information ! yoar or soon thereafler, fong-term not currently contain
no-capital assets ncluded cnpital nssets, althongh
: . thoy can
All rovenues and expenses Rovenues for which cash All revenyes and expenses All revenues and oxponses
during year, regardless is recelved diring or soon duttng year, regardless of during yeat, regardless
Typeof of when oash Is recolved after the end of the yeat; when cash Is received or of when eash Is
inflowlontflow or paid expenditures whon goods paid recelved or paid
Information or services have beon
received and paymeont is
due during the yoar
oy soon after

The City bas no fidoclary funds,

e




City of Bogata, Texas
MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-wide Statements

The govetnment-wide statetnents report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector
companies, The statement of net assets includes all of the government's assets and Habilities. All of the current year's revennes and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is reveived or paid.

The two government-wide statements veport the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net agsets-the difference between the City's assets and
ljabilities-is one way to measure the City's financial health or position.

»  Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deterlorating,
respectively,

»  To assess the overall health of the City, consideration should be given to additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City's tax
base,

The government-wide financial statements of the City include the Governmental activities, Most of the City's basic services are included here, such
as public safety, highways, streets and bridges, judicial and general administration, Property taxes and charges for services finance most of these
activities, )

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant fimds-not the City as u whole. Funds are
accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular pumposes,

¢  Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants,

s The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particolar purposes or to show that it-is properly using certain taxes
and grants,

The City has two kinds of funds:

s Governmental funds-Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial
assets that oan readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances lefy at year-end that are available for spending, Consequently,
the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-tersm view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near futare to finance the City's programs, Because fhis information does not encompass the additienal long-term focus
of the government-wide statements, additional information is provided that explaing the relationship (or differences) between them.

o Proprietary funds-Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in enterprise funds, Enterprise fonds, lko the
government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-term financial information. Irternal service finds are used to report activities
that ptovide supplies and services for the City's other programs and activities, The City has no internal service funds.



City of Bogata, Texas
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net assets, The City's combined net assels were approximately $2.9 million at September 30,2010,

Table A-1
The City's Net Assets
{in thousands of dollars)
Govesnmental Business Type
Activities Activitles Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other agsets 254 207 424 457 678 664
Capital and non-current assets 1,021 924 1,579 1,423 . 2,600 2,347
TOTAL ASSETS 1,275 1,131 2,003 1,880 3,278 3,011
————
Long-term liabilitics 249 266 - - 249 266
Other linbilities 140 22 33 32 173 54
TOTAL LIABILITIES 389 288 33 32 422 320
Invested in capital assots net of related debt 772 657 1,579 1,423 2,351 2,080
Restricted 83 131 327 350 410 481
Unrestricted 31 55 64 75 - 95 130
TOTAL NET ASSETS 886 843 1,970 1,848 2,856 2,691
T ey e e T r—— =

Net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt reflects the book value of the City's capital assets in excess of the debt which
financed those assets. The $95 thousand of unrestricted net assets represents resources avallable to fund the programs of the City for

the next fiscal year,

The $410 thousand is resticted as follows:

Restrieted for debt service 15
Restricted for capital projeots 395
Restrioted for special revenue funds -

410

Net assets of the City increased approximately $165 thousand,

G



City of Bogata, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Changes in net assets,

The City's total revenues were $1.0 million, 17% of this came from property taxes, 10% came from sales taxes and other taxes, and 38%
came from charges for services,

The total cost of all programs was $849 thousand. Approximately 22% of this was for public safety, 11% was for administrative, and 35%
was for water and sewer.

Table A-2
The City's Changes in Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 99 112 291 277 390 389
Capital Grants and Contributions 137 52 204 . 341 52
QGeneral Revenues

Property Taxes 169 169 - - 169 169
Other taxes 103 108 “ - 103 108
Investment earnings 2 4 6 16 8 20
Other . 2 5 1 1 3 6
Total Revenues 512 450 502 294 1,014 744
Yxpoenses

Administrative 95 75 - - 95 75
Sanitation 74 53 ~ " 74 53
Strect 66 95 - - 66 95
Fire 15 13 " - 15 13
Law enforcement 140 101 - - 140 101
Municipal court 33 31 - - 33 31
Intergovernmental 16 - - . 16 -
‘Water and sewer - - 240 185 240 185
Debt service - interest 12 6 - - 12 6
Depreciation 63 40 95 79 158 119
Total Expenses 514 414 335 . 264 849 678
Trensfers in (out) 45 20 (45) 20$) - -
Incrense (decrease) in Not Assuts 43 56 122 10 165 66
Beginuing Net Assets 843 787 1,848 1,838 2,691 2,625.
Tnding Not Assets 886 843 1,970 1,848 2,850 2,691

Table A-3 pregents the cost of each of the City's largest functions as well ag each functlon's net cost (total cost less fees generated by the
activities and infergovernmental ald), The net cost refleots what was funded by state revenves as well as local tax dollars,

Table A-3
Net Cost of Seleoted City Funetions
(In thousands of dollats)

Total Cost of : Net Cost.of
Services Services
2010 2009 2010 2009
Public safety (police and fire) 155 114 148 128
Street 66 95 66 108
Water and sewer 335 264 44 (13)

e



i City of Bogats, Texas -
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYXSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

The City teported fund balance in its governmental funds of approximately $114 thousand at September 30, 2010, This balance is composed of the
following in thousands

General 114
l Special revenue -
| 114
l -
\

The general fund balance decreased $72 thousand, Revenues, exclusive of grants, were about the same as the ptior year, Operating expenditures
increased as compared to the prior yeat.

Qeneral Fund Budgetary Highlights

The budget was amended during the year, No significant increase or decrease to fund belance was budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
Table A-4
P City's Capital Assets
! (in thousands of dollars)
Govemmental Business-Type
! ‘ Activities Aciivities
; _ 2010 2009 2010 2009
P Land and consiruction in progress 139 2 220 16
' Buildings and improvements” 272 257 63 18
Machinery and equiptment 613 667 147 102
Water and sewer system - - 3,467 3,512
Purniture and fixtures 23 23 - -
X Park 100 100 - -
. Streets 453 453 - -
Totals at historical cost 1,600 1,502 3,899 3,648
¢ Total aceumulated depreciation (579) (579) (2,320) (2,225)
' Net capital agsets 1,021 923 1,579 1,423
Long-Term Debt
? Table A5
: Clty's Long-Term Debt
; (In thousands of dollars)
' Governmental Buginess-Type
i Activities Activitles
: 2010 2009 2010 2009
: Notes payable 137 149 - -
: Bonds payable/Certificates of obligation 112 117 - -
; 249 266 - -




City of Bogata, Texas
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appoinied officlals considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2010/2011 budget and tox rates. Two fhctors
congidered were growth and economic conditions, Neither are projected to change significantly, As a result no significant changes were made to
budgeted amounts for 2011 compared to 2010. The City contimes to pursue grants to inuprove the City’s water and sewer system and sireets, No
new governmental functions will be added. It s anticipated that the equity position of the City will remain about the same, The financial position of
the City will remain at adequate levels to provide the services desired by the cliizens of the City so that the Clty will remain an aftractive place for
people and businesses to locate,

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial reportt is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the City's finances, Questions

concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be dirested to the City Manager’s
Office,

-
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BExhibit A1
City of Bogata, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

As of September 30, 2010

Primary Government

Business
Governmenial Type
Activities Activitles Total

ASSETS
Current agsets

Cash and cash equivalents 23,359 62,889 86,248

Accounts receivable, net of allowances 148,181 34,345 182,526

Due from other funds - - -
Total current assets 171,540 97,234 268,774
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 82,284 327,011 409,295
Total restricted assets 82,284 327,011 409,295
Capital assets

Land and construction in progress 138,582 15,636 154,218

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 882,275 1,563,159 2,445,434
Total vapital assets 1,020,857 1,578,795 2,599,652
Total agsets cels2 74,681 2,003,040 3.277,721
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued oxpenses 119,626 - 119,626

Deferred revenues 20,573 - 20,573

Due to other funds - - -

Notes payable, owrrent 12,312 - 12,312
Total ourrent Habilities 152,511 - . 152,511
Curreni liabilities payable from restricted nssets

Bond interest payable, current - - .

Bonds and certificates payable, current 5,000 - 5,000
Total current liabilities payable from restricted agsets 5,000 - 5,000
Non-current liabilities

Customer deposits - 32,779 32,779

Bonds, notes and cettificates payable, non-ourrent 231,378 - 231,378
Total non-current Habilities 231,378 32,779 264,157
Total labilities 388 880 ___ 32,719 421,668
NET ASSETS

Invested in oapital assets, net of related debt 772,167 1,578,796 2,350,963

Restricted for debt servico 15,041 - 15,041

Restricted for special revenue funds 459 - 459

Resirioted for capital projects 67,243 327,011 394,254

Unrestricted 30,882 64,454 95,336
Total net assets

885,792 1,970,261 2,856,053

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of this statement,

~10-



. Exhibit B-1
City of Bogata, Texay
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended September 30, 2010

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Capital
Charges for ~ Grants and Governmental  Business-Type
Expenses Services  Contributions Activities Activitley Total
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Administrative 95,445 - - (95,445) - (95,445)
Sanitation 73,605 84,591 - 10,986 - 10,986
Street 65,614 - 119,344 33,730 - 53,730
Fire 15,439 - - (15,439) - (15,439)
Law enforcement 139,699 - 6,506 (133,193) - (133,193)
Munieipal court 32,985 13,964 - (19,021) - (19,021)
Intergovetntmental 16,602 - 11,591 (5,011) - (5,011)
Debt service-interest 11,770 - - (11,770) - (11,770)
Unallocated depreciation 63,064 - - (63,064) - (63,064)
Total Govermmental Activities : 514,223 08,555 137,441 (278,227) - (278,227)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Water and sewer 335,282 291,118 204,041 - 159,877 159,877
Total Business-Type Activitey 335,282 291,118 204,041 - 159,877 159,877
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 849,505 389,673 341,482 (278,227) 159,877 (118,350)
General Rovenues
Taxes ‘
Property taxes 168,583 - 168,583
Sales and other taxes 103,215 - 103,215
Grants and confributions, not restricted - ‘ - -
Inveshment earnings 2,356 6,596 8,952
Miscellancous . 2,258 747 : 3,008
Total General Revenues 276,412 7,343 283,755
Othet Sources (Uses)
Transfers in {out) 45,000 (45,000) -
Changes in Net Assets . 43,185 122,220 165,405
Net Agsets -~ Boginning 842,607 1,848,041 2,690,648
Net Agsets -- Ending 885,792 1,970,261 2,856,053

The accompanying notes are an intogral patt of this statement,

11«
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Bxhibit C-1

City of Bogata, Texas
BALANCE SHEET

Governmental Funds -

as of Septernber 30, 2010
Total

Speoial Other Governmental
General Revenue Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cush and cash equivalents 22,500 - 459 23,359

Accounts receivable, net of allowanoces 28,837 119,344 - 148,181
Restricted assets; -

Cash and cash equivalents 82,284 - “ 82,284
Total Assets 134,021 119,344 459 253,824
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 282 119,344 - 119,626.

Deferred revenue 20,573 - - 20,573

Due to other-funds - - - -
Total Liabilities 20,855 119,344 - 140,199
Tund Balances

Designated

Reported in speclal revenue funds - - 459 459
Restricted for debt setvice 15,041 “ - 15,041
Restricted for capital projects 67,243 - - 67,243
Unreserved and Undesignated
Repotted in the general fund 30,882 - - 30,882
Total Fuad Balances 113,166 " 459 113,625
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 134,021 119,344 459 253,824

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of this statemont,

12



City of Bogata, Texas
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
for the year ended September 30, 2010

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Capital agsets used in governmental aotivities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in governmental
funds. At the beginuing of the year, the cogt of these assets was $1,502,191 and the acoumulated depreciation was $579,027.
In addition, Jong-tetm Habilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore are
not tepotted a8 liabilities in the funds. The net effect of inoluding the beginning balances for capital asseis (net of
depreciation) and long-term debt in the governmental activities is to Increase (decrease) net assets,

Current year capital 'outlay‘s and long-term debt principal payments are oxpenditures in the fund financiel statements, but they
should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements,
The net effoct of including the 2010 capital outlays and debt prineipal paymonts is to increase (decrense) net essets,

Loan proceeds,

The 2010 depreciation expense increases acounulated depreciation, The net effect of the current year's depreciation is to
decroase net assets,

Net Assets, of Governmental Activities

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of this statement.

-13-
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113,625

656,983

178,248

(63,064)

885,792
[—————————r]



City of Bogatn, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES--GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
for the year ended September 30, 2010

Total
Special Other Governmental
General Reyenue Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes 168,583 " - 168,583
Sales and other taxes 103,215 - - 103,215
Trash collection 84,591 “ - 84,591
Intergovernmental 11,591 119,344 6,506 137,441
Interest 2,356 " " 2,356
Municipal court 13,964 - " 13,964
Miscellanieous 2,258 - “ 2,258
Total Revenues . 386,558 119,344 6,506 512,408
BEXPENDITURES
Current
Adwinistrative 88,292 - . 88,292
Sanitation 73,605 - - 73,605
Street 57,842 - - 57,842
Fire . 15,439 “ - 15,439
Law enforcement 133,642 " 6,057 139,699
Municipal court 32,985 - - 32,985
Intergovernmental - - - -
Capital outlay
Administrative 7,153 - . 7,153
Street 49,185 119,344 - 168,529
Library 16,602 - - 16,602
Law enforcement - - - -
Debt service
Principat 17,491 - - 17,491
Interest 11,770 " - 11,770
Total Expenditures 504,006 119,344 6,057 629,407
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (117,448) - 449 (116,999)
OTHER. FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out) 45,000 - - 45,000
Loan proceeds - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 45,000 - " 45,000
Exocess (deficlency) of revenues and
other sources ovet expenditures ,
and other uses (72,448) - 449 (71,999)
Fund balance, October 1 : 185,614 - 10 185,624
Fund balance, September 30 113,166 - 450 113,625

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

14



- , Exhibit C4
City of Bogata, Texas
. , RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
' AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
; for the year ended September 30, 2010

i .
i Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Fonds (71,999)
Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principalpayments are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they

should be shown as increases in vapital assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-side financial statements.
The net effect of removing the 2010 capital outlays and debt principal payments s to Increase (decrease) net assets,

178,248
' Loan proceeds. -
: Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not require the use of current financtal
i resources. The net effect of the current year's depreoiation Is to decrease net assets. ' (63,064)
; Change in Net Assets of Govertmental Activities 43,185
N e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

“15.



REVENUES
Property taxes
Sales and other taxes
Trash collection
Intergovernmental
Interest
Municipal court
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

BXPENDITURES
Current
Administrative
Sanitation
Street
Fire
Law enforcement
Municipal court
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Debt service
Total Expenditures

Bxoess (doficienoy) of revenues
over expenditures

City of Bogata, Texas

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

General Fund

for the year ended September 30, 2010

Actual

OTHER FINANCIANG SOURCES (USES)

Transfets in (out)
Loan proceeds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excesy (deficlency) of revenues and
other souroes over expenditures
and other uses

Fund balanee, Qctober 1
Fund balance, September 30

' Variance with Final
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Budget Positlve
Original Final GAAP Basis or (Negative)
167,190 167,190 168,583 1,393
108,000 108,000 103,215 (4,785)
90,000 90,000 84,551 (5,409)
11,635 11,635 11,591 (@4
4,500 4,500 2,356 (2,144)
24,500 24,500 13,964 (10,536)
6,090 6,090 2,258 (3,832)
o 411,015 411915 386,558 (25,357)
77,145 77,145 88,292 (11,147)
55,000 55,000 73,605 (18,605)
74,725 74,125 57,842 16,883
15,626 15,626 15,439 187
125,084 125,084 133,642 (8,558)
35,626 35,626 32,985 2,641
“ 75,000 72,940 2,060
28,709 28,709 29,261 (552)
411,915 486,915 504,006 (17,090)
- (75,000) (117,448) (42,448)
- - 45,000 45,000)
- - 45,000 (45,000)
- (75,000) (72,448) (87,448)
185,614 185,614 185,614 -
185,614 110,614 113,166 (87.448)

The accompanying notes aro an Integral part of this statement.
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City of Bogata, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
as of September 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Due from other funds
Total current assets

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

CAPITAL ASSETS

Land and construction in progress .

Other capltal assets, net of acontaulated depreciation
Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and acerued expenses
Total current liabilities

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Bond interest payable, current
Bonds payable, ourrent

Total current Habilities payable from restricted assets

Nos-outrent Habilities
Customer deposits
Bonds payable, non-cutrent
Total non-cirrent Habilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt servioe
Restricted for capital projeots
Unresiricted
Total net assety

Exhibit D-1

Total
Enterprise Proprietary
Fund Funds
62,889 62,889
34,345 34,345
97,234 97,234
327,011 327,011
15,636 15,636
1,563,159 1,563,159
1,578,795 1,578,795
2,003,040 2,003,040
——— fomem— e ]
32,719 32,779
32,779 32,779
32,779 32,779
s r——me
1,578,796 1,578,796
327,011 327,011
64,454 64,454
1,970,261 1,970,261

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Bogata, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENULS, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
for the year onded September 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services
Other

Total Opetating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Supplies and maintenance
Depreciation .
Total Operating Expenses

Net operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income (loss) before other financing sources (uses)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital contributions, grants

‘Transfers to general fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

Changes in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year
Net assots, end of year

Exhibit D-2

Total
Enterprise Proprietary
Fund Tunds
291,118 291,118
747 747
291,865 291,865
115,158 115,158 .
44,634 44,634
80,175 80,175
95,315 95,315
335,282 335,282
(43,417) {43,417)
6,596 6,596
6,596 6,596
(36,821) (36,821)
204,041 204,041
(45,000) (45,000)
159,041 159,041
122,220 122,220
1,848,041 1,848,041
1,970,261 1,970,261
s r— o]

The accompanylng notes are en integral part of this statement,
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City of Bogata, Texas
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PROPRIETARY FUND

for the year ended September 30, 2010

Total
Enterprise Proprietary
Fund Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash reosived from customers 292,520 292,520
Cash paymens to suppliers for goods and services (124,836) (124,836)
Cash payments fo employees for services and benefits (115,158) (115,158)
Net cash provided by operating activities 52,526 52,520
CASH I'LOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to general fund (45,000) (45,000)
Capital contributions, grants 204,041 204,041
Net cash (used in) noncapital financing activities 159,041 159,041

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest pald on debt (net)

Exhibit D-3

(250,871) (250,871)

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (250,871) 250,871)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIBS

Operating income (loss)

Adjustment to reconcile operating (loss)to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation
Increase in accounts receivable

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expensges

Change in customer deposits
Net cash provided by operating activities

6,596 6,596
6,596 6,596
(32,708) (32,708)
422,608 422,608
389,900 389,500
(43,417) (43,417)
95315 95,315

655 655
52,553 52,553

The accompanylng notes are an integral patt of thig statement,
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City of Bognta, Toxas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘At September 30, 2010

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Bogata, Texas is a City government operating under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of Texas, It is governed by City
Council elected by registered voters of the City, The City prepares its basic financlal statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and other authotitative sources identified in Statement on Auditing
Standards No, 69 of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,

A, REPORTING ENTITY

The City Council is €lected by the publio and it has the autherity to meke decisions and significantly influence operations, Jt has the primary
accountability for fiscal matters, Therefore, the City is a financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
("GASB") in its Statement No, 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," There are no component units included within the reporting entity.

B, GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities ate government-wide financial statements, They report information on all of the City’s
with most of the interfund activities removed, Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by taxes, charges for services, grants
and other intergovernmental revenues, Business type aotivitles include operations that rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support,

The Btaternent of Activities demonstrates how other people or entities that participate in programs the City operates have shared in the payment of
the direct costs, The "charges for services" column inoludes payments made by parties that purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services
provided by a given function or segment of the City. Examples include fees charges for water, sewer, and garbage service, The "grants and
contributions" colymn includes amounts paid by organizations outside the City to help meet the operational or capital requirements of a glven
function, Ifa revenus is not a program revenve, it is n general revenue used to support all of the City's functions, Taxes arc always general revenues,

Interfond activities between governmental funds and between governmental fands and proprietary funds appear as due to/due froms on the.
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Assets and as other resources and other uses on the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditires and Changes in Fund Balance and on the Proprietaty Fund Statement of Revenves, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets. All interfund transactions between governmental funds are elitninated on the governmént-wide statements, Interfund activities

between governmental funds and enterprise funds remain on the government-wide statements and appear on the government-wide Statement of Net
Assets as internal balances and on the Statement of Activities as interfund transtors,

The fond financial statements provide reports on the financlal condition and results of operations for two fand categoties ~ governmental and
proprietary. The City considers some governmental funds major and reports thelr financial condition and results of operations in & separate column,

Proprietaty funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items, Operating revenves tesult from providing goods and
services in conneotion with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations; they usually come from exchange or exchange-like transactions, All

other revenues are nonoperating, Operating expenses can be tied specifically to the production of the goods and services, such as materials and labor
and direct overhead. Other oxpenses ate nonoperating.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAYL, STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements use the coonomic resources measurotnent focus and the accrual basis of accounting, asdo the proprietary
fund and fidueiary fund financial statements, Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses ate recorded when a lability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes aro recognized as revenmes in the year for which they are levied, Grants and sitnilar items nre
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requiretents imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basls of accounting. With
this measurement focus, only current assets, current lHabilities end fund balances are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these
funds present not increnses and decrenses in current assets (i.e,, rovenues and ofher financing sources and expendituras and other financing uses),

The modified acorual basis of aceounting recoghizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available, and it
recognizes expenditures in the acoounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest and principal on
long-term debt, which is recognized when due. The expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are tecognized

when the obligations ave expeoted to be Hquidated with expendable available financial resourees, The City considers all revenues available if they
are collectible within 60 days after year end,

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized undor
the "susceptible to acerual” concept, that is, when they are both measurable and available, The City considers them "available” if they will be
oollected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year, Misoellancous revenues are recorded ns revenue when recelved in cash because they are
genesally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are botly measutable and available.
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City of Bogata, Texag
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At September 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICYES continued

Grant funds are consideted to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant. Accordingly, when such funds are
receiyed, they are recorded ag deferred revenues until related and authorized expenditures have been made, If balances have not been expended by
the end of the project period, grantors some times tequire the City to refund all or part of the unused amount,

The Proprietary Fund Types are accounted for on a flow of economio resources measurement foous and wtlize the accrual basis of accounting, Thig
basis of aocounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they ate earned and become measarable and expenses in the accounting
period in which they are incurred and become measurable, The City applies all GASB pronouncements as well as the Finanoial Accounting
Standards Board pronowncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these prohouncements confliot or confradiot GASB
pronouncements. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are inoluded on tho fund
Statement of Net Assets, The fund equity is segtegated into invested in capital assets net of related debt, vestricted net assets, and vmrestricted net
nggets. :

D. FUND ACCOUNTING
The City reports the following major governmental fund;

1. The General Fund — The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resoutces except thoso
required to be accounted for in another fund,

Addition_ally, the City reports the following fund type:
Governmental Funds;

1. Special Revenue Funds — The City accounts for resoutoos restricted to, or designated for, specific purposes by the City or a grantor in
a speoial revenune fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

1, Enterprise Funds -- The City's activities for which outside users are charged a feo roughly equal to the cost of providing the goods or
services of those activities are.accounted for in an enterprise fand, The City's major Enterprise Fund is the water and sower fund,

L. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. For putposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, the City considers highly Hauid investments to be cash equivalents
if they have a maturity of three months or less when putchased,

2, Tn the government-wide financial statements, long-term. debt and other long-term obligations are reported as Habilitles in the
applicable governmental activities statement of net assets,

3. Capital assets, which include land, buildings, machinery and equipment and roads and bridges are reported in the applicable
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements, Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated wseful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constracted, Donated capital assels are tecorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not
capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed,

Buildings, machinery and equipment of the City and the component units are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated nseful lives:

Assels Yoars

Buildings and Improvementy 33-40

Vehioles -7
Machinery and Bquipment 7
Streets 20-30
Water and sewer gysten 33-40
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City of Bogata, Texas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At September 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

4, Some cash and investments are restricted for future debt payments,

5. In the fund finanolal statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amoimts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose, Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

6. When the City incurs an exponse for which it may use either restrioted ot uhrestricted assets, it uses fhe restricted assets first whenever
they will have to be-teturned if they ate not used,

7. Investments are recorded at fair market value,

8. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 generally are followed in both
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict
guidance of the GASB. Governments also have tho option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for thelr business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

II, RECONCILIATION OF GOYERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A, EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET AND THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Exhibit C-2 provides tho reconciliation between the fund balance for total govetnmental funds on the governmental fund balance sheet and the net
assets for governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets, One element of that reconciliation explains that capital
assely are not financial resoutces aud are therefore not reported in governmental funds, In addition, long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported as liabilities in the funds, The details of capital assets and long-term debt at the
beginning of the year were ag follows:

Net Value at the

Capital Assets Acoumyilated Begiming of the Change in Net
at the Beginning of the year Tdistoric Cost Depreciation Year Assets
Land 2,500 - 2,500
Buildings and improvements. 257,063 - 257,063
Machinery and equipment 667,004 - 667,004
Furniture and fixtores 22,552 - 22,552
Park 99,779 . 99,779
Streets 453,293 . 453,293
Accumulated depreciation (579,027) - (579,007)

Change in Net Assets. 923,164 - 923,164 923,164
Long-term Liabilities Payable at the
at the Beginnlng of the year Beginning of the

. Year

Notes and certificutes payable 266,181 (266,181)

Change In Net Assets
Net Adjiistment to Net Assots 656,983

22



City of Bogats, Texas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At September 30, 2010

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUKES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Exhibit C-4 provides a reconciliation between the net changes in fund balatce as shown on the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditutes, and changes in fund balances and the changes in net assets of governmental activities as reporied on the government-wide statement of
activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that current year capital outlays and debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund
finanolal statements, but should be shown as increases in capital assets and decreases in long-term debt in the government-wide statements. This
adfustment affects both the net asset balance and the change in net assets. The details of this adjustment ate as follows:

Adjustments to
Changes in Net Adjustments fo
Amount Asgets Net Asgets
Cugrent yoar Capital Outlay )
Capital outlay 160,757 160,757 160,757
Total Capital Outlay 160,757 160,757 160,757
Debt Principal Payments
Debt principal 17,491 17,491 17,491
Total Principal Payments 17,491 17,491 17,491

Total Adjustment to Net Assets 178,248 178,248

11, STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A BUDGETARY DATA

Formal budgetary integration i employed as a management control device during the yent for the general fand, special revenue fund and debt
setvico fund. This budget is adopted on a basly consistent with generally accepted accounting prineiples. Once approved, the City Council may
amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues and appropriations,

The budgets for the operating funds and proprietary fund operations are prepared on the cash and expenditures basis. Revenues are budgeted in the
year receipt is expected; and expenditures are budgeted in the year the applicable putchase orders are expected to be issued, The budget and actual
financlal statements are reported on these bases, Unencumbered appropriations for annually budgeted funds lapse at fiscal year-end,

The City does not record encumbrances ag patt of its acconnting records,

IV, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

Al DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Lepal and Contractnal Provisions Governing Deposits and Investments

The Public ¥unds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) containg specific provisions in the areas of investment practices, management
reports and ostablishment of approprinte policies. Among, other things, it requires the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy,
That policy nmust address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4)
acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of refurn, (6). maximnm allowablo stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-
weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturlty date for the portfolio, (8) investmont staff quality and capabilitics, (9) and bid solicitation
preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U8, Treasury, certain U.S, agencies, and the
State of Texns; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certaln munioipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchage agreements, (6) bankers
acceptances, (7) Mutval Funds, (8) Investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, (10) and common trust finds, The Act also requites the
City to have independent auditors perform test proceduses related to investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is in substantial
compliance with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.

Additlonal Contractoal provisions governing deposits and investments for tho City are as follows!
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City of Bogata, Texas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At September 30,2010

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments

In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the City has adopted a deposit and investment polioy, That policy does address the following

risks:
1,
2.
3,
4.
5,
B.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the tisk that in the event of & bank failure, the government’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The City’s polloy regarding types of deposits allowed and collateral requirements is that the funds of the City must be
deposited and invested under the terms of a coniract, contents of whivh are set out in the Depository Contract Law, The depository bank
places approved pledged securities for safokeoping in an amount sufficient to protect the City’s funds on a day-to-day basis during the
period of the coniract, The pledge of approved securities is walved only to the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount of Fedetal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insutance.

Deposits of the Cify are insured or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the
name of the City, :

At September 30, 2010, the carcying amount of the City's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-bearing savings accounts
included in temporary investments) was approximately $496,000, The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2010 and during the year
ended September 30, 2010 were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's agent bank in the Clty's
name,
In addition, the following is disclosed regarding coverage of combined balances on the date of highest deposit:

a.  Depository: Guaranty Bond Bank

b, ‘The market value of secutities pledged as of the date of the highest combined balance on deposit was approximately $I790,000.

¢, Thehighest combined balances of cash, savings, and time deposit accounts amounted to approximately $616,000.

. Total amount of FDIC coverage at the time of the highest combined balance was approximately $250,000.
Custodial Credit Risk — Investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the faiture of the counterparty, the government
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of en outside party, Positions in
external investment pools are not subject to custodial credit risk, The City has no investments exposed to custodial eredit risk at the end of

the period,

Interest~rate Risk - Interest-rate risk ocovrs when potential purchases of debt scoutities do not agres to pay face value for these seouritios if
inorest rates rige. The City does not purchase investments where the face valuedg not guaranteed,

Concentration Risk — Concentration risk iy defined as positions of 5 percent or more i the securities of a single {ssuer, Investients in
extetnal investment pools are not subject to concentration risk, The City is not exposed to any amounts of concentration rigk,

Other Credit Risk Exposure— The City has no investments in external investment pools.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied by Ootober | on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and business personal property located in the
City in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Propetty Tax Code, Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1
of the year followlng the year in which imposed. On January 31 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to seoure the payment of all taxes,
penalties, and intorest ultimately lmposed. Property tax revenues are considered avaflable (1) when they become due or past due and receivable
within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be eollected during a 60-day perlod after the close of the school fiscal year,

The 2009 assessed valuation (net of exemptions) was approximately $26,000,000 levied at a rate of $0.65 per hundred dollar valuation, Propexty tax
revenues of approximately $169,000 were available,

C.

DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE

Delinguent taxes are deposited into the general fund, Allowances for uncollectible tax recetvables within the General and Debt Service Funds are’
based on historlcal experfence in colleoting property taxes, Uncollcotible personal property taxes are perlodically reviewed and written off, but the
City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authotlty from the Texas Legislature,
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City of Bogain, Texas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At September 30, 2010

D. DISAGGREGATION O¥ RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Revelvables at September 30, 2010, were as follows:

Propetty Charges for Intergov- Total
Taxes Services ernmental Other Receivables
Governmental Activities:
General Fund 37,406 8,264 - - 45,670
Special Revenue Fund “ “ 119,344 - 119,344
Total - Governmental Activities o 37406 8,264 119,344 . 165.014
Amounts not scheduled for collection
during the subsequent year 16.833 - - - 16,833
Business Type Aotivities: -
Major Enterptise Fund - 42,968 - - 42,968
Total-Business Type Activities - 42,968 . - 42,968
Amounts not scheduled for collection e
during the subsequent year w 8,623 - - 8,623
Payables at September 30, 2010, were as follows:
Salaries and Intergov- Total
Accounts Benefity ermmental Other Payables
Governmental Activities:
General Fand 282 - - - 282
Special Revenue Fund . - - 119,344 - 119,344
Total « Governtnental Activities 289 - 119,344 - 119,626
Amounis not scheduled for payment T )
during the subsequent year . “ - - -
Business Type Activities:
Major Enterprise Fond - - - - -

Total-Business Type Activities N - -

Amounts not scheduled for payment
during the subsequent year - - -

B, RESTRICTED ASSELS

Certain assets are restricted for debt service and for capital projects,

5.
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F. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

City of Bogata, Texas

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At September 30, 2010

Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows:

Goverminental Activities;
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Park
Streots

Totals at Historic Cost

Less Accumulated Depreoiation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Park
Streets

Total Acouwmulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Capital

- Assots, Net

Businesg-Type Activities:
Langd and construction in progress
Building and improvements
Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment

Totals at Historic Cost

Less Accumulated Depreciation for;
Bulldings and improvetnents
Water and sewer gystem
Machinery and equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activifies
Capital Assets, net

Primary Government
Capltal Assets, net

Depreciation expense wag charged to govetnmental funetions as follows:

Governmental Actlvities

Unallocated

Primary Government
Beginning Buding
Balance Additions Retirentents Adjustments Balance
2,500 - - - 2,500
257,063 14,996 - - 272,059
667,004 9,679 (63,520) - 613,163
22,552 - - - 22,552
99,779 - - - 99,779
453,293 136,082 - - 589,375
1,502,191 160,757 {63,520) - 1,599,428
(29,078) (7,654) . - (36,732)
(455,706) (40,056) 63,520 (432,242)
(22,552) . - . (22,552)
(28,233) (3,628) . - (31,861)
(43,458) (11,726) - - (55,184)
(579,027) (63,064) 63,520 - (578,571)
923,164 97,693 - . 1,020,857
Rem——— T
15,636 204,041 - - 219,677
18,375 46,830 - - 65,205
3,466,738 - - - 3,466,738
147,509 - . - 147,509
3,048,258 250,871 - - 3,899,129
(12,323) (1,722) . . (14,045)
(2,128,797) (88,423) - - (2,217,220)
(83,899) (5,170) - - (89,069)
(2,225,019) (95,313) - - (2,320,334)
1,423,239 155,556 - - 1,578,795
2,346,403 253,249 - - 2,599,652
[————— ] fomrs s v e - f =] e
Business-Type Activities.
633064 Water and sewer 93,315
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City of Bogala, Texas’

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At September 30, 2010
G. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the year ended September 30, 2010,

Balance Balance Due
at at Within
10/01/08 Tssued Retired 9/30/09 One Year
Primary Government
Governmental Activitiess
Notes payable 149,181 - (12,491) 136,690 12,312
Series 2007, Certificates of
obligation, 4.5%, serially 117,000 - (5,000) 112,000 5,000
Total , 266,181 - (17,491) 248,690 17,312
Business-Type Activities:
Debt - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Total pricnary governmental debt 266,181 - (17,491) 248,690 17,312
The annual tequirements to amortize debt payable as of Septembert 30, 2010, follow:
Governmental Activitles Business-Type Activities
Yearg Ending Years Ending
9/30 Principal Interest Total 9/30 Principal Interest Total
2011 17,312 11,724 29,036 2010 - "
2012 17,928 10,882 28,810 2011 " -
2013 18,575 10,010 28,585 2012 ~ “
2014 20,255 9,084 29,339 2013 “ -
2015 20,968 8,100 29,068 2014 - -
2016-2020 101,652 23,328 124,980 2015-2019 - -
2021-therenftior 52,000 7,335 59,335
Totals - "
Totals 248,690 80,463 329,153 -
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City of Bogata, Texas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At September 30, 2010
I RETIREMENT PLAN
Plan Descrintion

The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the
stete-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of over 800 administered by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee
retirement system,

Benefits

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the City-financed monetary credits, with interest. At the
date the plan began, the City granted monetary credits for service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what
would have been contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan, Monstary credits for service at least since the plan
began are a percent (100%, 150%, or 200%) of the employee's accutnulated contributions. In addition, the City can grant, s often ag annuelly,
another type of monetary oredit referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical amount which, when added to the employee's
accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be the total monetary credits and employee contributions
gconmulated with interest if the current employea coniribution rate and clty metching percent had always been in existence and if the employee's
galary had always been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one year before the effective date, At refirement, the benefit is
caloulated as if the sum of the employee's accomulated contributions with interest and {he employer-financed monetary crediis with interest were
used to purchase an annuity.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS, Plan
provisions for the City were as follows (as of 3/1/10%);

Deposit Rate: 5% " .

Matching Ration (City to Employee); ltol

A member i3 vested after: 5 years

Members can retire at cortain ages, based on the years of servioe with the City. .

The Service Retirement Eligibilities for the eity (expressed as years of service/age) are: 5 yrs/age 60; 20 yrs/any ago
Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary anmually determines the City's contribution rate, This rate consists of the normal cost contribution
rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculoted 10 be a level percent of payroll from year to year, The normal cost
contribution rate finances the curvently aceruing monetaty credits dus to the City's matohing percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an
employee's retirement date, not at the time the employee's contributions are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined
percent of puyroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the tine his retirement becomes effective, The prior service
contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial lability (asset) over the remainder of the plan's 25-year amortization period. The unit
eredit actoarial cost method s used for determining the City contribution rate. Both the employees and the City make contributions monthly, Since
the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that is the
basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect, (i, December 31, 2009 valuation is effective for rates beginning in January
2010)

Schedule of Actuarial Linbilities and Funding Progress

Actoarial Valuation Date 12/31/2009
Actuarial Value of Assets 116,139
Actuarial Acerued Liability 59,924
Unfunded (Over-Funded) Actuarial Accrued Liabitity ((JAAL) (56,215)
Funded Ratlo 193.80%
Annual Covered Payroll 195,210
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 28.4%
Fiscal year ending 9/30/2010
Anmual Pension Cost . 1,460
Porcentage of APC contributed 100%
Net pension obligation 0.00

The City of Bogata i3 one of over 800 municipalities having the benefit plan administered by TMRS, Rach of the municipalities have an annual,
individual actuarial valwation performed, All assumptions for the 12/31/09 valuations are contained in the 2009 TMRS Comprehensive Anaual
Financial Report, a copy of which may be obtained by writing to P,0, Box 149153, Austin, Texas 787149153,
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City of Bogata, Texas
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At September 30, 2010
1. CONTINGENCIES
Litigation,
There is no signifioant litigation in progress as of September 30, 2010,
Federal Award Programs (Grants)
The City has received Federal and State Awards for specific purposes that are subjeot to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could

Tesult in a request for reimbursement for expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the approptiate agency, City management does
not believe that any significant costs will be incurred by the City.

J RESERYED FUND EQUITY

Reservations of fund equity show amounts that are legally restricted for specific purposes. The purpose for each is indicated by the account title on
the balance sheet,

K. RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss to torts of theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and

natural disasters, During fiscal 2009/2010, the City puschased commercial insurance to cover general liabilities, There were no significant
reductions In coverage in the past fiscal year, and there were no seitlements exceeding insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years,
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WYTH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and City Couneil
City of Bogata ’
Bogata, Texas

Mayor and City Council;

We have audited the financial statements of the: governmental activities, the business-type activitics and each major fund of
the City of Bogata as of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2010, We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of America and the standards appleable o financial eudits
contained in Government duditing Standards, igsued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

Intetnal Control Ovet Financial Reporting

In planning and petforming our audit, we considered the City of Bogata’s internal control over financial repotting as a basis
for designing our euditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not-allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and cotrect, misstatements on a timely
basis, A material weakness s a deficlency, or a combination of deficiendies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or deteoted and
correcied, on a timely basis.

Our considetation of internal control over financial reporting was for thé limited purpose described in the first patagraph of
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencics, significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses, We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above, ‘

Compliance and Other Matiets

As part of obtalning reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are fres of material misgtatement,
wo porformed tests of fts compliance with certain provigions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agteoments,
noncomplance with which could have a direct and material offect on the determination of financial statement amowns.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and vse of management, the Board, and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

Respectfully Submitted,

ttold, Walker, rinucld & (Jo., P, (.

Arnold, Walker, Arnold & Co., P.C.

November 15, 2010

915 M, Jefforson Street @ PO Box 1217 o M, Pleasant, Toxas 754561217 o (903) 572-6606 o an(903)5'72-3751
Emaik flrm@awacpa.com



1.

City of Bogata, Texas
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUEBSTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Summary of the Auditor's Results:

a The type of report lssued on the financlal statements of the City of Bogata was unqualified,

b. Where applicable, a statement that reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the financial statements and
whethet they were material weaknesses. See 11 below, no matetlal weaknesses.

o, A statement as to whether the'audit disclosed any noncompliance which is material to the financlal statements of the suditee. Note,

d. Where applicable, a statement that reportable conditions in internal control over majot programs were disclosed by the audit and
whether any such conditions were material weaknesses, N/A.,

e. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major programs. N/A.

f A gtatement as to whether the audit disclosed any audit findings which the auditor is required to report under Section .510(a). N/A.

g An identification of major programs: N/A,
h, The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, N/A,
i A statement as to whether the auditee qualified as a low risk sudites. N/A,

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required To Be Reported in Accordance with Generally Accepted Government
Auditing Standards.

None
Tindings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards Including Audit Findings as Desctibed in 1, £ Above

None
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City of Bogata, Texas
SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR FINDINGS
For the year ended September 30, 2010

None
City of Bogata, Texas
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For the year ended September 30, 2010
ITEM # CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
N/A None
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Federal Grantor:. U.S, Department of HUD

City of Bogata

FEDERAL PROGRAM PROJECT SCHEDULE
PROJECTS THAT ENDED OR WERE IN OPERATION DURING
' the year ended September 30, 2010

Pass Through Grantor: Texas Department of Rural Affairs

CFDA # 14.228
Project # 729059
Contract Period  9/15/09 —9/14/11

REVENUE

EXPENSES
Sewer Facilities
Engineering
Administration

Total

EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE
OVER EXPENSES

Prior Current
Budget Year Year Total
250,000 204,041 204,041
190,965 149,662 149,662
34,000 33,099 33,099
25,035 21,280 21,280
250,000 204,041 204,041

-33-
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City of Bogata

FEDERAL PROGRAM PROJECT SCHEDULE
PROJECTS THAT ENDED OR WERE IN OPERATION DURING
the year ended September 30, 2010

Pass Through Granfor: Texas Department of Agriculture
Texas Capital Fund

Project 728222

Contract Period  10/20/08 — 10/19/11

Prior Current
Budget Year Year Totsl
REVENUE - 150,000 - 119,344 119,344
EXPENSES
Sidewalks & lightning 135,000 - 119,344 119,344
Engluneering (*) ' " - . -
Administration 15,000 “ - -
Total 150,000 - 119,344 119,344
EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE
OVER EXPENSES - - - -
Lo e ==}
(*) - City paid engineering
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ATTACHMENT G

LETTERS OF SUPPORT
FROM ROSE ACRE
"FARMS AND THE ONLY
AFFECTED
LANDOWNER



April 27,2011

W@

Alfred R. Herrera

Herrera & Boyle, PLLC

816 Congress Ave,, Ste. 1250
Austin, Texas 78701

Dear Mr. Herrera:
Rose Acte Farms is planning to locate a farm near Bogata, Texas.
In order for this to be accomplished, one of the issues is affordable water.

We understand that the city of Bogata, Texas and the Red River Water Supply
Corp. have entered into an agreement that would allow a certain area of the CCN
belonging to Red River Water Supply Corp. to be given to the city of Bogata,
Texas.

Our company is locating an office along Highway 37 in Bogata, Texas and would
like to have one supplier for our water needs.

With this, Rose Acre Farms fully understands and agrees that the CCN of Red
River Water Supply Corp. be amended to allow the city of Bogata, Texas to
provide water to our farm near Bogata, Texas.

Thank you for you help in this matter.

Sincerely, e

oifr et

Chips Everhart
Director of Environmental Affairs
Rose Acre Farms



May 26™, 2011

Alfred R, Hecrera

Herrera & Boyle, PLLC "
816 Congress Ave,, Ste 1230

Austin, Texas 78701

Dear Mr, Herrera;

It is our understanding that Rose Acre Farms is planning to locate 4 facm near Bogata,
Texas.

Critical to this enterprise is the ability to obtain affordable water,

It is our understanding that the city of Bogata, Texas und Red River Water Supply Corp,
have entered luto an agreement that would allow a small aren of the CON belonging to
Red River Water Supply Corp. to be given to the city of Bogata, Texas.

T am a neighboring property owner of this site as we fatm many acres and operate a grain
storage facility near this proposed site, I understand that Rose Acre Farms will locate an
office along Highway 37 in Bogata, Texas, This transfer of the CCN would allow Rose
Acre Farms to have one supplier for their water needs,

To that , T fully understand and do agree that the CCN of Red River Water Supply Corp.

be amended to allow the city of Bogata, Texas to provide water (o Rose Acre Farmos site

in and near Bogata, Texas.

Thank you for your consideration,

Sincerely, >
»

T, Steved, I~1gm Yan
147 Dx?a{am Ranch Rd,
Sulphulr Bluff, TX 75481-5107
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TCEQ Interoffice Memorandum

To: Environmental Law Division Date: August 4, 2011

Thru: Elizabeth Flores/Lisa Fuentes

From: D%ebi l.oockerman C,P.A,

Subject: Contract Service Agreement Pursuant to Texas Water Code Section 13.248,

from the City of Bogata, P0566, to Transfer a Portlon of Certiflcate of
Convenlence and Nacessity (CCN) Ne, 10530 from Red River County Water
Supply Corporation (Red River WSC) in Red River County; Application No.
37065-C

CN: 600627939; RN: 101384352 (transferee/City of Bogata)
CN: 600632137; RN: 101185031 (transferor/Red River WSC)

In my opinion, the Clty of Bogata has demonstrated adequate financlal, managerial and
technical capability to provide service to the area contracted for release and transfer, These
conclusions are based on information provided by the applicant prior to this date and may
not reflect any changes In the applicant’s status subsequent to this date,

Background

Red River WSC and City of Bogata (Bogata) entered into an agreement as of July 26, 2010
to transfer the acreage outside the Clty currently within Red River WSC's certificated area
which contalns Rose Acre Farm so that Bogata may serve the planned egg farm. Because
Rad River WSC Is simply releasing the CCN area to Bogata for provision of water service, no
compensation or payment is mentioned.

Bogata provides service to more than 580 connections according to the TCEQ Water Utllities
Database (WUD). The water system is ranked superior. WUD indicated that a notice of
enforcement Is pending for Bogata, however, telephone conversations with the Enforcement
Division, indicated that the notice of enforcement was resolved and closed on December 23,
2009,

I have reviewed an unqualified auditor's opinion and attached financial statements for
Garden Ridge for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The balance sheet for the
water system showed total assets of $2,003,040, no long-term debt, and net assets
(equity) of $1,970,261. The clty as a whole has a debt to net asset (equity) ratlo of
$231,378 to $885,792, or 0.26:1, A ratio of less than 1:1 is preferred when analyzing
financlal capability of water and wastewater entities to provide requested service,

The statement of revenues and .expenses for the water utllity showed a net aperating loss of
$43,417 before transfers of $45,000 after covering depreciation expense of $95,315 and no
interest expense. The utility operations fund has no debt, therefore there Is no debt service
or debt service coverage.

This information supports a finding of adequate financial and managerial capability fo
provide service to the area contracted for transfer.

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
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City of Bogata / Red River County Water Supply Corporation
Application No. 37065-C (13.248 Contract Service Agreement
to Transfer a Portion of Red River County WSC, CCN No. 10530
to the City of Bogata and Decertify CCN Area)

Red River County
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MAP CONSENT FORM
Applicant’s Name: City of Bogata and Red River County WSC (13.248 Agreement)
~ Application Nos.: 37065-C

., M I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff letter transmitted on
£l August 31, 3011,

o I do not concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained
in the staff letter transmitted on August 31, 2011,

I am authorized by the City 0'F§0'gata to sign this form,
Signature: %@W)ﬁ?}@

Printed Name: %/;2/ CENT A{:M V)
Relationship to Applicant: /774 v OR

Date signed: Q/////
/ /

Fax, or email to:
Elizabeth Flores
Utilitles & Districts Section, MC 153
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

P.0. Box 13087

Austin, TX 78711-3087

Fax; (512) 239-6972

Elizabeth.Flores@tceq.texas.gov



MAP CONSENT FORM

Applicant’s Name: City of Bogata and Red River County WSC (13.248 Agreement)

" Application Nos.: 37085

“ & I concur with the recommendation contained in the staff letter transmitted on

August 31, 3011,

. T donot concur with and intend to respond to the recommendation contained
in the staff letter fransmitted on August 31, 2011,

I am authorized by the City of Bogata to sign this form,

SSignatura:szw&@QQn (Q FEAIHA

Printed Name: \/\/@Mﬂé e // JO a5

Relationship to Applicanty REA RW*:W Co %N'LV Warfen 5“‘(";@// lor /’f"””‘”wf"‘:)./Q
Date signed: SVQIJ,D#'QMID@ ”~ i,, &O//

Fax, or email to:
Elizabeth Flores
Utilities & Districts Section, MC 153
Water Supply Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

£.0. Box 13087

Austin, TX 78711-3087

Fax: (512) 239-6972

Elizabeth, Flores@tceq.texas.gov



